HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
May 13, 2007
11:15 p. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 11:15:26 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representative Les Gara
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Mary Nel son
Representative Bill Thomas Jr.

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton; Representative Gabrielle LeDoux;
Pete Ecklund, Staff, Representative Kevin Meyer; David Teal
Director, Legi slative Finance Division; Karen Rehfeld,
Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

SUVMVARY

#sb53

CS SB 53(FIN)
An  Act making and anmending appropriations,
including capital appropriations, supplenenta
appropriations, and appropriations to capitalize
f unds; ratifying certain expendi t ur es; and
providing for an effective date.

HCS CS SB 53 (FIN) was
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 53(FIN)

An Act making and anending appropriations, including
capital appropriations, supplenental appropriations,
and appropriations to capitalize funds; ratifying

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 05/13/07 11:15 P. M



certain expenditures; and providing for an effective
dat e.

Vice-Chair Stoltze MOVED to ADOPT work draft version #25-
GS1014\ R, Kane, 5/13/07, as the version of the bill before
the Comm ttee.

PETE ECKLUND, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KEVIN MEYER, provided
menbers with a spreadsheet outlining project differences in
t he nunbered sections (copy on file). He observed that a few
| ate reappropriations were added. He reviewed changes nade
to the | anguage section.

Page 154: $2 mllion was added to the University of
Al aska for increased retirenent costs; and

Page 168: $24 million was added to pay 25 percent of
the district cost factors as a grant; and $10.5 nillion
as a grant for the school inprovenment grant program

Co-Chair Meyer observed that the House operating budget
contained identical anobunts for education spending and
expl ained that 50 percent of the district cost factors as
contained in the ISER study would be inplenmented at $48
mllion. A total of $21 mllion would be appropriated to
school inprovenment grants to offset district cost factors.

Page 171: Section 50(d) is a new reappropriation of $2
mllion for the Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities for a right away on Illinois-Barnnet Street
design in Fairbanks. There is an additional $10 million in
federal authority.

11: 20: 51 PM

Page 175: Section 55 is a $48.1 million grant for nunicipal
energy system which uses the nethodology in SB 172 for
di stribution.

M. Ecklund explained that population figures have been
updated by the Departnent of Comerce, Comunity and
Econom c Devel opnent .

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the appropriation is referred to
as nunicipal assistance, but it could be called revenue
sharing or energy assistance, and incorporates provisions of
SB 72. Representative Joule pointed out that it would be a
one year appropriation.

M. Ecklund continued to point out changes in the commttee
substitute.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 05/13/07 11:15 P. M



Page 184: Section 56 (a) clarifies that FYO7 surpluses would
be swept into the Al aska Capital Incone Fund. Subsection (b)
clarifies that in the case of a FYO7 deficit, funds would
cone fromthe Al aska Housing Capital Corporation

Page 184: Section 57 contains a $50 million appropriation to
the Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund, which was also in
the previous version. Representative Gara clarified that
the Constitutional Budget Reserve was not addressed outside
of Section 57 and that there were no withdraws from the
Fund.

Representative Nelson asked about wthdrawals from the
Amerada Hess Fund. M. Ecklund observed that the operating
budget contai ned an appropriation from the earnings of the
Amer ada Hess Fund to the Capital |ncone Fund.

11: 23: 58 PM

Representative Nelson asked if there were anything in the
capital budget from the Anerada Hess Account. M. Ecklund
clarified that there were no [direct] Anerada Hess
expenditures in the capital budget. There is spending from
the Al aska Capital |ncome Fund.

Representative Gara further explained that $28 million was
taken fromthe Amerada Hess Account and added to the Capital
| ncome Fund. The capital budget expends the Capital |ncone
Fund, which includes the Permanent Fund Amerada Hess noney.

M. Ecklund affirnmed and added that other interest earnings
of approximately $9 nmillion were included in the Capital
| ncome Fund.

In response to further questions, M. Ecklund explained that
the Alaska Capital Income Fund was created 2 years
previously. The interest earnings fromthe Anerada Hess sub-
account were deposited into the Al aska Capital |ncone Fund.
Deposits into the Alaska Capital Incone Fund are not
limted; any funds can be deposited to the Fund.

11: 26: 25 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the Capital Income Fund is
general ly used for projects such as roads. The appropriation
does include sonme projects for nonprofits.

M. Ecklund noted that there was a recipient change in the
Rai | belt Energy Fund appropriation. The city of Seward was
added and the interest earnings were appropriated to the
Copper Valley Electric Association.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 05/13/07 11:15 P. M



M. Ecklund observed that $84.930 mllion in additional
general funds were added to the Senate version: $12.9
mllion in federal funds, $45.408 mllion in other funds.
Ceneral funds were $531.207 mllion.

11: 29: 32 PM

Co- Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT Anendnment 1A: decrease Section
18(b) from “$600,000” to “$300,000”. Representative Gara
OBJECTED.

M. Ecklund explained that the anmendnment would be net zero
with the addition of Amendnent 1 (b). The Alaska Maid Dairy
woul d receive reduced funds. Representative Gara asked for
further information regarding the reduction, which M.
Eckl und noted cane fromthe O fice of the Governor.

Vice-Chair Stoltze observed that the remaining funds would
help with transition of the Dairy.

KAREN REHFELD, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
noted that the funding would help a private entity to
restructure the dairy.

11: 32: 42 PM

Representative Gara W THDREW his OBJECTION. He noted that
the Dairy is a state operation, which is | oosing noney.

There bei ng NO OBJECTI ON, Amendnent 1(a) was adopt ed.
11:34:13 PM

Representative Thomas MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent 1 (b):
appropriate $300 thousand to the Al aska Laborers Training
School for the purchase of a D3 Rock Drill. Co-Chair Meyer
OBJECTED.

Representative Thomas explained that the anmendnent would
nove the D3 Rock Drill purchase fromthe AG A budget to the
capital budget. M. Rehfeld further explained that the
Department of Labor and W rkforce Developrment had a $6.5
mllion fiscal note for A A The capital budget contains $3
mllion for the pipeline training facility and $300 thousand
for the D3 Rock Drill purchase. She noted that the remaining
portion of the fiscal note needed further discussion.

There bei ng NO OBJECTI ON, Amendnent 1(b) was adopt ed.
Representative Crawford MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 2: relating

to transm ssion lines connecting Fire Island Wnd Farm to
Anchorage (copy on file.) Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 05/13/07 11:15 P. M



Representative Crawford explained that one of his goals in
running for the legislature was to nove the state toward a
new paradigm for generating power in Alaska's Railbelt. He
noted that the Railbelt Energy Fund was created to support
renewabl e energy sources. He observed that projects have
been del ayed and continued to outline potential alternative
energy projects. He expressed concern with reductions from
t he Rail belt Energy Fund.

11:39: 57 PM
Representative Crawford W THDREW Anendnent 2. Co- Chai r
Meyer noted that funds could still be used for the Fire

| sl and proj ect.

11:40: 31 PM

Representati ve Joul e W THDREW Anendnent 3.
Representati ve Joul e W THDREW Anendnent 4.
11:41: 02 PM

Representative Gara MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent 5: $630
t housand for Head Start grants. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED.

Representative Gara maintained that even with the increase
in education spending, the net affect is that less wll be
spent on pre-K education in FY 08 than in FY 07. He noted
that Al aska is one of nine or eleven states that do not have
a statewide early education system outside of Head Start.
The appropriation would inflation proof the Head Start
Program which has been flat funded for the past 5 years.
There are nore children on the waiting |ist every year. He
mai ntai ned that early education works and those children
from poor incone famlies who receive pre-K education have
hi gher rates of enploynment and hi gher education, and |ower
rates of incarceration and drug abuse. The anendnent would
prevent nore layoffs in the Head Start program He stressed
that the anmendnent should be ahead of many of the other
projects in the capital budget.

Co-Chair Meyer countered that the item should be placed in
t he operating budget.

Ms. Rehfeld agreed that there is an effort to expand the
preschool progranms across the state. There is a small
increnment in the operating budget. She stressed the need to
involve comunities differently and to inprove quality and
provi de opportunities to nore communities. Co-Chair Meyer
pointed out that the current Head Start general fund
contribution is close to $6 million dollars. M. Rehfeld
stated that federal funds go directly to the grantee.
Representative Gara maintained that the anmount has stayed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 05/13/07 11:15 P. M



the sane, while costs have increased and noted that there
are large waiting lists. He urged expandi ng pre-K education
st at ewi de.

11:47: 30 PM

Aroll call vote was taken on the noti on.

IN FAVOR: Joul e, Nelson, Crawford, Gara

OPPCSED: Kelly, Stoltze, Thomas, Foster, Hawker, Chenault,
Meyer

The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-7).

11: 48: 32 PM

Representative Joule MOVED to ADOPT Anendrment 6: $8 million
for low incone energy assistance. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED.

Representative Joul e explained that the amendnent woul d add
$8 nmillion general fund dollars to the Departnent of Health
and Social Services for statewi de energy assistance. He
noted the high cost of fuel and the statew de application.

Co-Chair Chenault commented that the program is currently
federal |y funded.

Representative Hawker affirned that the program is fully
federally funded. The federal governnent has provided funds
when they were inadequate. He felt that it was inappropriate
to start a state program

Representative Nelson noted that it is a federal program
but enphasized that 31 other states have matched federal
funds. She noted that 16 percent of the recipients came from
Anchorage, 12 percent from Wasilla/Palner, and 10 percent
from Fai rbanks. She conpared purchasi ng power and noted the
decline. There were additional funds |ast year, however,
each household only received an additional 20 - 40 gall ons.
She maintained that people in the villages were hit hard by
high oil prices.

Representative Gara noted that Al aska has the highest fuel
cost in the country. He spoke in support of the anendnent.

Aroll call vote was taken on the noti on.

IN FAVOR: Joul e, Nelson, Crawford, Gara

OPPCSED: Kelly, Stoltze, Thomas, Foster, Hawker, Chenault,
Meyer

The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-7).

Representati ve Joul e W THDREW Anendnents 7 and 8.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 05/13/07 11:15 P. M



11:54: 39 PM

Co-Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent 9: renane recipient

as Federation of Community Councils, Inc, - Airport Heights
Community Patrol — Supplies and Fuel. Chair Chenault
OBJECTED

M. Ecklund explained that Amendnent 9 was a technical
anmendnent. Chair Chenault WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There
bei ng NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

Representative Nel son MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 10: Add $325
mllion to the Power Cost Equalization (PCE) Fund in the
Department of Conmerce, Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent
Al aska Energy Authority for increased PCE operating costs in
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007. Co-Chair Meyer
OBJECTED

Representative Kelly noted that the appropriation would be a
suppl enental and explained that wthout the anendnent
paynents woul d be prorated in June from89 to 69 percent due
to the al nost doubling of fuel costs.

Co- Chair Chenault noted that $182 to $183 million was pl aced
in the PCE Fund. He observed that another $12 mllion is
being added for the current year. An additional $8 - $9
mllion wll be needed in future years to keep the
percentage rate stable. He expressed concern that the Fund
will not reach its intended purpose if wthdrawal s conti nue.

Ms. Rehfeld acknow edged the shortfall for FY 07. She
observed that the Governor is commtted to fully funding
PCE. However, the CGovernor is also sensitive to preserving
the Fund for future costs.

11: 58: 32 PM

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Joul e, Nelson, Crawford, Gara
OPPCSED: Kelly, Stoltze, Thomas, Foster, Hawker, Chenault,
Meyer

The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-7).

Co-Chair Meyer MOVED to allow the Legislative Finance
Division to make technical corrections and other conformng
amendnents. M. Ecklund observed that at |east one change
woul d probably occur and pointed out that the title would
change in Section 56.

Representative Kelly expressed concern that there were
direct appropriations to tribal entities and questioned

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 05/13/07 11:15 P. M



t heir appropriateness. M. Ecklund responded that he had not
received any nenoranduns from the Legislative Finance
Di vi sion indicating concern.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

12: 03: 21 AM

Representative Gara commented on state spending for projects
that m ght be used for religious purposes and pointed to an
appropriation for Bingle Canp Mnistries. M. Ecklund noted
that Bingle Canp Mnistries is a non-profit. Co-Chair Meyer
observed that the Departnment of Commerce, Community and
Economi ¢ Devel opnent ensures that the separation between
church and state is maintained.

Representative Gara spoke to the $1.5 nmllion for the
Anchorage Sports conplex and questioned what percentage is
used for religious congregation purposes. Co-Chair Meyer
noted that the University of Anchorage and school district
al so use the conpl ex.

Co-Chair Chenault explained that there is a project to
produce bl ueberries for pharmaceutical s purposes. The intent
is to encourage economcal developnent. Representative
Thomas referred to the Kake bl ueberry industry.

Representative Gara observed that House Denobcrats were not
given an extra $500 thousand for each of their distrists. He
mai ntained that if they had, he would have preferred that
his $500 thousand be spent on the statewide Head Start
program

Co- Chair Meyer noted that the capital budget is considerably
| ess than the previous year’s, but still neets the state’'s
infrastructure needs. He pointed out that the FY 08 capita
budget is unique in that education funding was included for
t he next year.

12: 10: 03 AM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the capital budget includes: $50
mllion to fund: 50 percent of the |ISER cost differentials,
$21 million for School Inprovenent grants, $170 million for
a direct TRS appropriation, $26 mllion for a direct PERS
appropriation, and $77 nmillion for a TRS enployer
adj ustnment. There is $345 million new noney for education.

Representative Joul e expressed appreciation for sonme itens.
He spoke to changes in nunicipal assistance and educati on.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that revenue sharing |egislation (SB
172) has been around for a while. He acknow edged that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 05/13/07 11:15 P. M



mnority should have been contacted regarding changes to
educati on fundi ng.

12: 13: 56 AM

Representative Foster MOVED to report HCS CSSB 53 (FIN) out
of Conmittee. There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

#

ADJ OQURNNMENT

The neeting was adjourned at 12:15 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 05/13/07 11:15 P. M



